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IN THE DISTRICT COURT 
 
 
 

 
OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

 
 

 
 

______ JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

ORIGINAL PETITION AND APPLICATION FOR INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 
 

 The State of Texas, by and through its Attorney General, on behalf of the Texas 

Commission on Environmental Quality (“TCEQ”), files this Original Petition and Application for 

Injunctive Relief.   

I.  DISCOVERY 
  

1. The State will conduct discovery under a Level 2 Discovery Control Plan pursuant 

to Tex. R. Civ. P. 190. 

2. This case is not subject to the restrictions of expedited discovery under Tex. R. Civ. 

P. 169 because the State seeks non-monetary injunctive relief and the State’s claim for civil 

penalties could exceed $100,000. 

II.  NATURE OF SUIT 
 

3. This is a civil suit to enforce Chapter 382 of the Texas Health and Safety Code (the 

“Texas Clean Air Act”) and related regulations.  This matter involves a petroleum refinery that, 

because of operator error and poor maintenance, emitted multiple air contaminants without 

authorization.  The State seeks injunctive relief and civil penalties for the defendants’ violation of 
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state statutes, regulations, and permits.  The State also seeks its reasonable attorney’s fees and 

costs for prosecuting this action. 

III.   PARTIES 

4. Plaintiff, the State of Texas, is authorized to bring this suit through its Attorney 

General at the request of the TCEQ to enforce state statutes, regulations, and permits pursuant to 

Tex. Water Code §§ 7.032; 7.105.  No filing fee or other security for costs is required of the State 

under Tex. Civ. Prac. & Rem. Code § 6.001. 

5. Defendant, Valero Energy Corporation (“Valero”), is a corporation organized 

under the laws of the state of Delaware, with its principal place of business at One Valero Way, in 

San Antonio, Texas.  Valero can be served through its registered agent, CT Corporation System, 

at 1999 Bryan Street, Suite 900, Dallas, Texas 75201.   

6. Defendant, The Premcor Refining Group, Inc. (“Premcor”), is a corporation 

organized under the laws of the state of Delaware, with its principal place of business at One 

Valero Way, in San Antonio, Texas.  Premcor is a subsidiary of Valero Energy Corporation.  

Premcor can be served through its registered agent, CT Corporation System, at 1999 Bryan Street, 

Suite 900, Dallas, Texas 75201.   

IV.  JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

7. This Court has jurisdiction and venue is proper in Travis County pursuant to Tex. 

Water Code § 7.105 and Tex. Gov’t Code § 2001.202.   

V.  APPLICABLE LAWS 

A. General Requirements under the Texas Clean Air Act 

8. It is the policy of the State to “safeguard the state’s air resources from pollution by 

controlling or abating air pollution and emissions of air contaminants, consistent with the 
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protection of public health, general welfare, and physical property, including the esthetic 

enjoyment of air resources by the public and maintenance of adequate visibility.”  Tex. Health & 

Safety Code § 382.002(a). 

9. “A person may not cause, suffer, allow, or permit the emission of any air 

contaminant or the performance of any activity in violation of [Chapter 382 of the Texas Health 

and Safety Code] or of any commission rule or order.”  Tex. Health & Safety Code § 382.085(b). 

10. An “air contaminant” includes “particulate matter, radioactive material, dust, 

fumes, gas, mist, smoke, vapor, or odor, including any combination of those items, produced by 

processes other than natural.”  Tex. Health & Safety Code § 382.003(2). 

11. The Texas Clean Air Act confers jurisdiction on the TCEQ to adopt rules regulating 

the management of atmospheric emissions of air contaminants.  Tex. Health & Safety Code 

§ 382.017.   

12. The Texas Clean Air Act confers jurisdiction on the TCEQ to issue permits to 

facilities that emit air contaminants.  Tex. Health & Safety Code § 382.051.  The Act also 

authorizes the TCEQ to “establish and enforce permit conditions” within each permit.  Tex. Health 

& Safety Code § 382.0513. 

13. Texas is authorized to issue and enforce federal operating permits under Title V of 

the Federal Clean Air Act (“The Federal Act”). 30 Tex. Admin. Code, Chapter 122 (approved at 

66 Fed. Reg. 63,318 (Dec. 6, 2001)).  Pursuant to section 382.054 of the Texas Health and Safety 

Code, a person may not operate a federal source1 unless the person has obtained a federal operating 

                                                           
1 “Federal source” means a facility, group of facilities, or other source that is subject to the permitting requirements 
of Title IV or V of the federal Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990 (Pub.L. No. 101-549).  See Tex. Health & Safety 
Code § 382.003(7). 
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permit from the TCEQ under Texas Health and Safety Code sections 382.0541, 382.0542, or 

382.0543. 

14. Permits set forth specific means and methods for implementing emissions controls 

at a facility and set forth facility-specific limits for emissions of air contaminants from the facility.  

Permit holders must comply with any general and special conditions included in a permit.  Tex. 

Health & Safety Code § 382.0513; 30 Tex. Admin. Code §§ 116.115, 122.143. 

15. The Federal Act establishes a statutory scheme designed “to protect and enhance 

the quality of the Nation’s air so as to promote the public health and welfare and the productive 

capacity of its population.”  42 U.S.C. § 7401(b)(1).  The Federal Act required the United States 

Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) to publish primary and secondary national ambient air 

quality standards (“NAAQS” or “ambient air quality standards”) for certain “criteria air 

pollutants.”  See 42 U.S.C. § 7409.   

16. Pursuant to section 110 of the Federal Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7410, each state then had 

to develop a State Implementation Plan (“SIP”).  Each state SIP identifies areas within the state 

that either meet the ambient air quality standard for each criteria pollutant (“attainment areas”) or 

exceed the standard for that pollutant (“nonattainment areas”).  Each state SIP also contains 

emission limits and other measures necessary to achieve and maintain the ambient air quality 

standards.   

17. In addition, the Federal Act contains numerous other provisions to address various 

sources of air emissions.  “New Source Review” is a Federal Act program that requires industrial 

facilities to install modern pollution control equipment when they are built or when making a 

change that increases emissions significantly. The program accomplishes this when owners or 

operators obtain permits limiting air emissions before they begin construction. 
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18. The Texas SIP regulations that govern the control of air pollution through New 

Source Review permits are codified at Title 30 Tex. Admin. Code chapter 116.  “New Source 

Review Permit” refers to permits issued by the TCEQ pursuant to Title 30, subchapter B, chapter 

116 of the Texas Administrative Code. 

19. The Texas Clean Air Act regulates “emissions events.”  An “emissions event” 

means an “upset event, or unscheduled maintenance, startup, or shutdown activity, from a common 

cause that results in the unauthorized emissions of air contaminants from one or more emissions 

points at a regulated entity.” Tex. Health & Safety Code § 382.0215(a)(1); 30 Tex. Admin. Code 

§ 101.1(28). 

20. “Reportable emissions event” means any emissions event that, in any 24-hour 

period, results in an unauthorized emission from any emissions point equal to or in excess of the 

reportable quantity as defined by 30 Tex. Admin. Code § 101.1(88); 30 Tex. Admin. Code 

§ 101.1(89).  

21. Within 24 hours after the discovery of an emissions event, an owner or operator of 

a regulated entity shall (1) determine if the event is a reportable emissions event, and (2) notify the 

TCEQ regional office where the regulated entity is located, and all appropriate local air pollution 

control agencies with jurisdiction, if the emission event is reportable. 30 Tex. Admin. Code 

§§ 101.201(a)(1), 101.211(a). 

22. An owner or operator of a regulated facility that experiences an emissions event 

must create a final record of all emissions events within two weeks after the end of the emissions 

event. 30 Tex. Admin. Code §§ 101.201(b), 101.211(b) and (c). 

23. An “upset event” is an “unplanned and unavoidable breakdown or excursion of a 

process or operation that results in unauthorized emissions.”  30 Tex. Admin. Code § 101.1(110). 
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24. An “unauthorized emission” includes the emission of any air contaminant “that 

exceed[s] any air emission limitation in a permit, rule, or order of the commission.”  30 Tex. 

Admin. Code § 101.1(108). 

25. A “regulated entity” means “all regulated units, facilities, equipment, structures, or 

sources at one street address or location that are owned or operated by the same person. The term 

includes any property under common ownership or control identified in a permit or used in 

conjunction with the regulated activity at the same street address or location.”  Tex. Health & 

Safety Code § 382.0215(a)(2); 30 Tex. Admin. Code § 101.1(86). 

26. The Texas Clean Air Act authorizes the TCEQ to develop criteria for determining 

when an emissions event is reportable and when an emissions event is considered excessive.  Tex. 

Health & Safety Code §§ 382.0215, 382.0216.   

27. An emissions event is unauthorized because it exceeds air emission limitations in a 

permit, rule, or order of the TCEQ.  30 Tex. Admin. Code § 101.1(108). 

B. Civil Penalties for Violation of the Texas Clean Air Act 

28. “A person may not cause, suffer, allow, or permit a violation of a statute within the 

commission’s jurisdiction or a rule adopted or an order or permit issued under such a statute.”  

Tex. Water Code § 7.101. 

29. “A person who causes, suffers, allows, or permits a violation of a statute, rule, 

order, or permit” under the jurisdiction of the TCEQ “shall be assessed for each violation a civil 

penalty not less than $50 nor greater than $25,000 for each day of each violation,” and “each day 

of a continuing violation is a separate violation.”  Tex. Water Code § 7.102. 
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VI.   FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

30. Valero and Premcor (“Defendants”) currently own and operate a petroleum 

refinery, also known as the Valero Port Arthur Refinery, located at and about 1801 South Gulfway 

Drive, in Port Arthur, Jefferson County, Texas (the “Refinery”).   

31. In approximately 1901, refining operations at the Refinery commenced.  The 

Refinery processes sweet and heavy sour crude oils into fuels and other petroleum products.  The 

Refinery has capacity to process up to 395,000 barrels of crude oil per day.   

32. The processes at the Refinery generate and emit into the environment air 

contaminants including, but not limited to, volatile organic compounds (“VOCs”), sulfur dioxide 

(“SO2”), hydrogen sulfide (“H2S”), particulate matter, carbon monoxide (“CO”), nitrogen oxides 

(“NOx”), hazardous air pollutants (“HAPs”), and benzene.   

33. VOCs include any carbon compound, excluding carbon monoxide, carbon dioxide, 

carbonic acid, metallic carbide or carbonates, and ammonium carbonate, which participates in 

atmospheric photochemical reactions.  30 Tex. Admin. Code § 101.1(116); 40 C.F.R. § 51.100(s). 

A. Defendants’ Air Permits 

34. Defendants hold federal operating permits for the Refinery (Permit Nos. O1498; 

O2229; and O3423), which were issued under the State’s delegated authority under Title V of the 

Federal Act (“Title V Permits”).  42 U.S.C. § 7661a.  The Title V Permits set out each specific 

requirement applicable to each process unit and emissions point at the Refinery and incorporates 

other authorizations issued by the TCEQ, including New Source Review Air Permit Nos. 6825A 

and 80812 (“NSR Permits”).   

35. The NSR Permits set maximum emission limits and rates for emission of air 

contaminants from the entire facility.  Special Condition 1 of the NSR Air Permits provide that air 
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contaminants at the Refinery may emit only from designated “emission points” at the Refinery, 

which are identified in a table entitled “Emission Sources – Maximum Allowable Emission Rates” 

(also called “Emission Caps and Individual Emissions Limitations Table” or “ECIELT”).  The 

NSR Permits also set forth the emission rate limits (maximum caps) for specific air contaminants 

emitted from the entire Refinery (also called “Maximum Allowable Emission Rate Table” or 

“MAERT”). 

36. The Title V Permits and NSR Permits regulate air emissions from normal 

operations, as well as from startup, shutdown, and maintenance activities at most of the Refinery’s 

process units. 

37. Emissions events arising from an upset or unscheduled startup, shutdown, or 

maintenance event are not authorized under any air permit issued to the Refinery or the Texas 

Clean Air Act. 

38. The Refinery is subject to applicable provisions of the New Source Performance 

Standards (“NSPS”) program, which prohibits the operation of any new source in violation of a 

NSPS standard, limitation, or regulation. 42 U.S.C. § 7411(e).  

39. The Refinery is subject to applicable provisions of the National Emissions 

Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (“NESHAPS”) program, which prohibits the operation of 

any source subject to NESHAPS in violation of a NESHAPS standard, limitation, or regulation. 

42 U.S.C. § 7412(i)(3)(A).  

40. The emissions standards and limitations contained in Defendants’ NSR Permits, as 

well as the Texas SIP provisions and NSPS and NESHAPS programs, are incorporated into 

Defendants’ Title V Permits. Thus, a violation of any standard or limitation of the Federal or Texas 
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Clean Air Act, the Texas SIP, the NSR Permits, NSPS, or NESHAPS, are likewise a violation of 

a permittee’s Title V Permits.   

B. Past Emissions Events and Enforcement at the Refinery 

41. For several years, the Refinery has been plagued with continuing problems 

associated with operator errors and equipment malfunctions resulting in emissions events that emit 

unauthorized air contaminants into the environment.  Since 2014, approximately 38 emissions 

events occurred at the Refinery—events caused by operator errors or equipment malfunctions.    

42. Between 2014 and July 2017, the TCEQ entered 13 administrative orders against 

Defendants for violations relating to emissions of air contaminants from the Refinery.2 

Additionally, Premcor has been subject to a federal consent decree for violations occurring at the 

Refinery, which terminated in February 2018. 

43. Despite the enforcement taken by the TCEQ and EPA against Defendants for past 

emissions events, Defendants’ poor operational, maintenance, and design practices continue to 

cause emissions events and unauthorized emissions of air contaminants from the Refinery into the 

environment. 

VII.  VIOLATIONS OF NSR PERMITS 
 

44. Throughout the preceding five years, Defendants have repeatedly exceeded 

emissions standards or limitations contained in the Federal and Texas Clean Air Acts and their 

                                                           
2 The orders include Agreed Order, Docket No. 2013-1862-AIR-E, August 15, 2014; Agreed Order, Docket No. 2014-
0903-AIR-E, February 13, 2015; Agreed Order, Docket No. 2014-0630-AIR-E, March 13, 2015; Agreed Order, 
Docket No. 2014-0465-AIR-E, April 9, 2015; Agreed Order, Docket No. 2015-0292-AIR-E, August 7, 2015; Agreed 
Order, Docket No. 2014-1747-AIR-E, September 15, 2015; Agreed Order, Docket No. 2015-1423-AIR-E, March 1, 
2016; Agreed Order, Docket No. 2015-0594-AIR-E, March 3, 2016; Agreed Order, Docket No. 2016-0052-AIR-E, 
October 26, 2016; Agreed Order, Docket No. 2013-0839-AIR-E, December 9, 2016; Agreed Order, Docket No. 2011-
2300-AIR-E, December 9, 2016; Agreed Order, Docket No. 2016-0678-AIR-E, January 18, 2017; and Agreed Order, 
Docket No. 2016-1587-AIR-E, July 12, 2017. 
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NSR Permits. NSR Permit No. 6825A and NSR Permit No. 80812 require Defendants to comply 

with hourly and 12-month rolling average ECIELT and MAERT emission rate limits pursuant to 

Special Condition 1 of those permits. 30 Tex. Admin. Code § 116.115(b)(2)(F). From January 

2014 through the present, Defendants have repeatedly violated ECIELT and MAERT limits and 

other NSR Permit limits applicable to multiple individual emission points and specified groups of 

emission points. Defendants’ violations include, but are not limited to, violations of NSR Permit 

Nos. 6825A and 80812 site-wide emissions caps, emissions sub-caps for groups of sources, and 

emissions limits for individual sources; emissions limits during startups, shutdown, and 

maintenance events; and emissions limits for benzene, CO, H2S, opacity, particulate matter, SO2, 

and VOCs.  

45. Additionally, Defendants violated their 5.0 ppmv (“parts per million per volume”) 

limit on H2S emissions from tail gas incinerators located at the sulfur recovery plant at the Refinery 

on November 13, 2016, November 22, 2016, and June 30, 2017—exceedances in violation of 

limits specified by Special Condition No. 23 of NSR Permit No. 6825A and incorporated into its 

Title V Permits.   

46. Therefore, on multiple occasions, Defendants caused, suffered, allowed or 

permitted the emission of air contaminants from the Refinery in violation of the Texas Clean Air 

Act, Tex. Water Code § 7.101, Tex. Health & Safety Code §§ 382.085(a) and (b), and the Federal 

Act, from January 2014, through the present.  Each air contaminant emitted, each separate 

emission point, and each day that such emissions occurred constitute separate violations.  

VIII.  NSPS FLARING VIOLATIONS 
 

47. Sulfur Recovery Units (“SRU”) are “affected facilities” under NSPS Subpart Ja. 

NSPS Subpart Ja requires the SRUs to comply with the 250 ppmv emissions limit for SO2. 40 
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C.F.R. §§ 60.102(a)(f)(1)(i) and 60.106a(b)(1). This SO2 emissions limit is incorporated in 

Defendants’  Title V Permits.  

48. From January 2014, through the present, Defendants have repeatedly violated the 

250 ppmv emissions limit for SO2 from the SRUs, including on at least the following days: 

September 21, 2016; October 12, 2016; November 4, 2016; March 2, 2017; and May 17, 2017.  

49.  Therefore, on multiple occasions, Defendants have caused, suffered, allowed, or 

permitted the emission of air contaminants from the Refinery in violation of Tex. Water Code § 

7.101; Tex. Health & Safety Code §§ 382.085(a) and (b); 42 U.S.C. § 7411(e), 40 C.F.R. Part 60, 

Subpart Ja; and 30 Tex. Admin. Code § 101.20(1), from January 2014, through the present.  Each 

air contaminant emitted, each separate emission point, and each day that such emission occurred 

constitute separate violations.    

IX.  NSPS AND NESHAPS FLARING VIOLATIONS 
 

50. From January 2014, through the present, Defendants have repeatedly operated their 

flares in violation of its Title V Permits and federal NSPS and NESHAPS regulations. These 

violations include, but are not limited to: the failure to operate flares with a flame present at all 

times, in violation of 40 C.F.R. §§ 60.18(c)(2) and 63.11(b)(5); the failure to operate flares with 

the required minimum net heating value, in violation of 40 C.F.R. §§ 60.18(c)(3)(ii) and 

63.11(b)(6)(ii); and the failure to perform flare gas flow monitoring and correction, in violation 

of 40 C.F.R. § 60.107a(f)(1)(iii). The requirements are incorporated into Defendants’ Title V 

Permits.   

51. Therefore, on multiple occasions, Defendants caused, suffered, allowed, or 

permitted violations of Tex. Water Code § 7.101; Tex. Health & Safety Code § 382.085(b); 

42 U.S.C. §§ 7411(e) and 7412(i)(3)(A); 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subparts A and Ja; 40 C.F.R. Part 
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63, Subpart A; 30 Tex Admin Code § 113.100; and its Title V Permits, from January 2014, 

through the present. Each air contaminant emitted, each separate emission point, and each day 

that such emissions occurred constitute separate violations.  

X.  FEDERAL OPERATING PERMIT VIOLATIONS 
 

52. The emissions standards contained in Defendants’ NSR Permits, as well as the 

Texas SIP provisions and the NSPS and NESHAP programs, are incorporated into Defendants’ 

Title V Permits. Accordingly, each of the violations specified herein are also a violation of one or 

more terms of Defendants’ Title V Permits.  

53. Therefore, on multiple occasions, Defendants caused, suffered, allowed, or 

permitted the emission of air contaminants from the Refinery in violation of Tex. Water Code 

§ 7.101; Tex. Health & Safety Code §§ 382.085(a) and (b); and 42 U.S.C. § 7661a(a), from January 

2014, through the present.  Each air contaminant emitted, each separate emission point, and each 

day that such emissions occurred constitute separate violations.   

 
XI. UNAUTHORIZED EMISSIONS EVENTS 

 
54. From January 2014, through the present, the Refinery has been plagued with 

unauthorized emissions events. The TCEQ has issued Defendants Notices of Enforcement for 

emissions event violations occurring on the following days: September 30, 2016; October 26, 

2016; October 29, 2016; November 21, 2016; January 6, 2017; January 7, 2017; January 22, 2017; 

January 26, 2017; January 31, 2017; March 29, 2017; April 3, 2017; May 19, 2017; November 18, 

2017; November 30, 2017; January 19, 2018; November 28, 2018; March 12, 2019; and June 24, 

2019.  
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55. Additionally, since January 2014, Defendants have been subject to several 

administrative enforcement orders related to unauthorized emissions events occurring at the 

Refinery and Defendants have repeatedly exceeded emissions limitations contained in the Title V 

Permits and NSR Permits.   

56. Each violation specified in the Notices of Enforcement and administrative orders 

issued to Defendants, as well as each permitted emissions limitation exceedance, constitute a 

violation of one or more of Defendants’ permits and/or TCEQ regulations.  

57. Therefore, on multiple occasions, Defendants caused, suffered, allowed, or 

permitted the emission of air contaminants from the Refinery in violation of Tex. Water Code 

§ 7.101 and Tex. Health & Safety Code §§ 382.085(a) and (b), from January 2014, through the 

present.  Each air contaminant emitted, each separate emission point, and each day that such 

emissions occurred constitute separate violations. 

XII. CLAIM 1 – CIVIL PENALTIES 
 

58. A person may not cause, suffer, allow, or permit a violation of a statute, regulation, 

order, or permit under the TCEQ’s jurisdiction. Tex. Water Code § 7.101. A person who causes, 

suffers, allows, or permits a violation of a statute, rule, order, or permit under the TCEQ’s 

jurisdiction shall be assessed a civil penalty of not less than $50 or more than $25,000 for each 

violation.  Tex. Water Code § 7.102.  Each day of continuing violation is a separate violation. Id.  

59. As set forth in Sections VII through XI of this Petition, Defendants have repeatedly 

violated Texas laws, regulations, and the TCEQ issued permits relating to air quality and 

emissions. In each instance of violation, the State is entitled to civil penalties against Defendants 

within the statutory range of not less than $50 nor greater than $25,000 for each day of each 

violation alleged in this petition. Id. 
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XIII. CLAIM 2 – INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 
 

60. The Attorney General may commence an action in the name of the State and on 

behalf of the TCEQ to enjoin a violation or threatened violation of any “statute within the 

commission’s jurisdiction or a rule adopted or an order or a permit issued under such a statute.”  

Tex. Water Code §§ 7.032(b), 7.105.   

61. As set forth in Sections VI-XI of this Petition, Defendants have established a pattern 

of causing, suffering, allowing, or permitting violations of federal and state statutes, regulations, 

and permits.  Accordingly, the State seeks an appropriate injunctive order to prevent violations or 

threatened continuing violations and to obtain necessary corrective actions. 

62. No bond is required of the State prior to granting of an injunction as set forth in 

Tex. Water Code § 7.032(d). 

63. The State requests a permanent injunction ordering Defendants, their officers, 

agents, servants, employees, and all other persons acting in concert or participation with them, on 

their behalf, or under their control, whether directly or indirectly, to carry out the following:   

A. Words and Terms 
 
1. “Air Permits” means Title V Federal Operating Permit numbers O1498, O2229, and 

O3423 and New Source Review Permit numbers 6825A and 80812 issued by the Texas 
Commission on Environmental Quality to The Premcor Refining Group, Inc, as 
amended.   
 

2. “Certified Environmental Auditor” means an independent third party, not employed by 
the Defendants, who is certified to perform an Environmental Audit.   
 

3. “Defendants” mean Valero Energy Corporation and The Premcor Refining Group, Inc., 
their officers, agents, servants, and employees, and those in active concert or 
participation with them.   
 

4. “Effective Date” means the date Premcor is served with this Injunction. 
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5. “Emissions Event” means any upset event or unscheduled maintenance, startup, or 
shutdown activity, from a common cause that results in unauthorized emissions of air 
contaminants from one or more emissions points at a regulated entity as set forth at 30 
Tex. Admin. Code § 101.1(28). 
 

6. “Refinery” means the petroleum refinery located at and about 1801 South Gulfway 
Drive in Port Arthur, Jefferson County, Texas. 
 

7. “State” means the State of Texas, including the Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality. 
 

8. “TCEQ” means the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality and its predecessor 
and successor agencies. 

 
B. Ordering Provisions 

 
1. Immediately upon the Effective Date, Defendants shall comply with each term, 

limitation, and condition in the Air Permits. 
 

2. Performance of an Environmental Audit. 
 

a. No later than 30 days after the Effective Date, Defendants must retain a 
Certified Environmental Auditor and submit to the TCEQ the name of the 
Certified Environmental Auditor.  The TCEQ may require, and Defendants 
must provide, no later than 10 days after any request, additional information 
about the retained Certified Environmental Auditor. 

 
b. No later than 30 days after the Effective Date, Defendants shall submit to the 

TCEQ a proposal for an Environmental Audit of the Refinery for January 1, 
2014, through the Effective Date.  The proposal for an Environmental Audit 
shall include, at a minimum: (1) a detailed description of how each element of 
the Environmental Audit, set forth in para. 63.B.2.c below, will be 
accomplished; and (2) a detailed schedule demonstrating how Defendants will 
complete the Environmental Audit on or before the date set forth in para. 
63.B.2.e.   

 
c. The Environmental Audit of the Refinery shall include a systematic evaluation, 

review, or assessment of compliance with environmental statutes and 
regulations relating to the Air Permits and Emissions Events, and shall include 
the following: 
 

i. A schedule for completion of the Environmental Audit;  
 

ii. Process descriptions and flow diagrams for each Refinery operation 
subject to an Emissions Event occurring between January 1, 2014, and 
the Effective Date;  
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iii. Identification and analysis of causes for each Emissions Event occurring 
at the Refinery between January 1, 2014, and the Effective Date;  
 

iv. Review and analysis of the effectiveness of corrective actions 
previously taken by Defendants in response to each Emissions Event 
occurring at the Refinery between January 1, 2014, and the Effective 
Date; 
 

v. Identification and analysis of additional corrective actions needed to 
address the root cause of each Emissions Event occurring at the Refinery 
between January 1, 2014, and the Effective Date, including, but not 
limited to:  
 

1. Analysis of and identification of operating procedures and 
protocols contributing to any Emissions Event at the Refinery 
and identification of any changes necessary to prevent additional 
Emissions Events at the Refinery, including those beyond what 
is required under the Air Permits or related statutes and 
regulations; and  
 

2. Identification of equipment and system improvements or repairs 
to minimize the possibility of future Emissions Events at the 
Refinery;  
 

vi. Identification of specific and Refinery-wide corrective action needed to 
prevent future Emissions Events at the Refinery; and 
 

vii. Any other recommendations, reviews, or proposals the Certified 
Environmental Auditor believes necessary to identify corrective action 
to prevent future Emissions Events at the Refinery. 
 

d. No later than 45 days after the Effective Date, Defendants shall have the 
Certified Environmental Auditor commence the Environmental Audit.   
 

e. No later than 180 days after commencing the Environmental Audit, Defendants 
shall submit the Certified Environmental Auditor’s final Environmental Audit 
report to the TCEQ.  The final Environmental Audit report shall include, in 
addition to the information set forth in para. 63.B.2.c., a detailed description of 
and cost estimates of all the recommendations included in the Environmental 
Audit, including any operational or physical modifications to the Refinery, that 
in the Certified Environmental Auditor’s sole independent judgment, are 
necessary to reduce or prevent the number of Emissions Events at the Refinery.  
The TCEQ may require, and Defendants must provide, no later than 10 days 
after any request, additional information that the TCEQ deems necessary for 
evaluation of the final Environmental Audit report. 

 
f. No later than 15 days after Defendants submit the final Environmental Audit 

report to the TCEQ, Defendants shall commence implementation of the 
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proposed recommendations in the final Environmental Audit report.  No later 
than 60 days after implementation of each individual recommendation, 
Defendants shall submit to the TCEQ written certification that the 
recommendation has been implemented, together with any supporting 
documentation as necessary to demonstrate implementation.   

 
3. On and after the Effective Date, Defendants agree to provide the State and its 

representatives access at all reasonable times to those portions of the Refinery 
necessary to carry out the provisions of this Injunction and any of the TCEQ’s duties 
set forth in State law.  This is in addition to any Refinery access the TCEQ is otherwise 
entitled to under State law.   

 
4. The following shall apply to all plans, reports, and other documents that are required 

to be submitted to the TCEQ in this Injunction: After receiving a document, if the 
TCEQ requests in writing a modification or further information, Defendants shall 
respond in writing within the time specified in TCEQ’s request.  Failure to respond to 
a written request for modification by the specified deadline shall be a violation of this 
Injunction. 

 
5. No informal advice, guidance, suggestion, or comment by the TCEQ regarding reports, 

plans, specifications, schedules, or any other writing submitted by Defendants shall 
relieve Defendants of their obligations to submit documents to the TCEQ as may be 
required by this Injunction, and to comply with all requirements of this Injunction.  

 
6. Defendants shall address each plan, report, submittal, specification, notice, and other 

document required to be submitted by this Injunction to: Texas Commission on 
Environmental Quality, Order Compliance Team, Enforcement Division, MC-149A, 
P.O. Box 13087, Austin, Texas 78711-3087; with copies to:  David A. Terry, Assistant 
Attorney General, Office of the Attorney General, Environmental Protection Division 
(MC-066), (AG#CX0800792117), P.O. Box 12548, Austin, Texas 78711-2548. 

 
XIV.      ATTORNEY’S FEES AND COSTS 

64. This is an action brought by the State to recover civil penalties and for injunctive 

relief.  Therefore, as set forth in Tex. Water Code § 7.108 and Tex. Gov’t Code § 402.006(c), the 

Attorney General is entitled to recover and collect reasonable attorney’s fees, investigative costs, 

and court costs incurred in relation to this proceeding on behalf of the State.  In the event of an 

appeal to the Court of Appeals or to the Supreme Court, the Attorney General is entitled to recover 

and collect its additional reasonable attorney’s fees and court costs on behalf of the State. 
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XV.      POST-JUDGMENT INTEREST 

65. Pursuant to Tex. Fin. Code § 304.003, the State asks this Court to award the State 

post-judgment interest on all amounts awarded in relation to this proceeding, at the maximum rate 

allowed by law. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

The State of Texas requests the following, that: 
 

1. the Court grant a permanent injunction against Valero Energy Corporation and The 
Premcor Refining Group, Inc., as requested herein; 
 

2. the Court grant judgment against Valero Energy Corporation and The Premcor 
Refining Group, Inc. for appropriate civil penalties within the range allowed by 
law;  
 

3. the Court award the State its reasonable attorney’s fees, court costs, and reasonable 
investigative costs in this action;  

 
4. the Court award the State post-judgment interest on all amounts awarded the State 

from the date of judgment until fully paid; and  
 

5. the Court award the State all such other relief, general and special, at law and in 
equity, to which it may show itself justly entitled. 
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Respectfully submitted, 

KEN PAXTON 
Attorney General of Texas 

JEFFREY C. MATEER 
First Assistant Attorney General 

DARREN L. MCCARTY 
Deputy Attorney General for Civil Litigation 

PRISCILLA M. HUBENAK 
Chief, Environmental Protection Division 

_/s/ David A. Terry__________________ 
DAVID A. TERRY 
Assistant Attorney General 
State Bar No. 24079447 
David.Terry@oag.texas.gov 

Office of the Attorney General of Texas 
Environmental Protection Division 
P.O. Box 12548, MC-066 
Austin, Texas 78711-2548 
Tel: (512) 463-2012 
Fax: (512) 320-0911 

ATTORNEYS FOR THE STATE OF TEXAS 




